
B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Building No. 10, 12th Floor, Tower-C 
DLF Cyber City, Phase - II 
Gurugram - 122 002, India 
Tel: +91 124 719 1000 
Fax: +91 124 235 8613 

Registered Office: 

B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted into B S R & Co. LLP (a 
Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 

 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco 
Center, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063 

Page 1 of 10 

 Independent Auditor’s Report 
 To the Members of Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited 

 Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited (the “Company”) 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including 
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Other Matter(s) 

a. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the 
predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion on 17 May 2023. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
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on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the 
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014. 

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. the modifiation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”. 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 37 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 37 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
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representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below, 
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares: 
 

i. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log 
any direct data changes for the accounting software. 
 

ii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not available or not enabled at the 
application layer of certain accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of account 
relating to revenue. 
 

In case of (i) and (ii) above, the question of audit trail feature being tampered with does not arise 
since audit trail (edit log) facility was not available or not enabled. 

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid 
any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed 
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

 For B S R & Co. LLP 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022 

  

  

  

 David Jones 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXK4173 
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(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification 
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in 
a phased manner over a period of 3 years.  In accordance with this programme, certain property, 
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets.  No discrepancy was noticed on such verification. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where 
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company is a service company, primarily rendering event organization and subscribtion 
services.  Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits 
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. 
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given 
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185 
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, 
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services 
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Sales tax and Value added tax 
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST. 
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident 
Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company 
with the appropriate authorities. 

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs and 
Employees State Insurance. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service 
Tax, Providend Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other 
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of 
any dispute. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, 
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and 
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or government authority. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company 
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been 
used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as 
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not 
applicable. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the 
company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate company (as defined under 
the Act). Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 



B S R & Co. LLP 

 

 Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements 
of Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Continued) 

Page 7 of 10 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by 
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period 
under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors 
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us by management of the Company, 
the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016) does not have more than one CIC (which is not required to be registered with RBI as not 
being Systemically Important CIC) as detailed in note 37(viii) to the financial statements. We 
have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management 
is accurate and complete. 

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 354 Lakhs in the current financial year and Rs 
734 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have duly taken 
into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes 
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
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balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the 
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent 
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

 For B S R & Co. LLP 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022 

  

  

  

 David Jones 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXK4173 
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Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Mosaic Media 
Ventures Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). 

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 
  
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
 For B S R & Co. LLP 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022 

  

  

  

 David Jones 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXK4173 
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David Jones
Pa rtner
Membership No. 098113

Place: New Delhi

(DrN 03155s91)

Place: New Delhi

Director
(DrN 02797819)

#lh
q*#



a) Revenue from oDerations
b) Other income

Total Incom€
lI ExDenses

a) EmDloYee benefits exoense
b) Finance costs
c) Deoreciation and amortization expense
d) Other exoenses

Total ExPenses
III Loss before exceptional items and tax from operations(I-u)
Iv Exceptional items
V Loss before tax (IU+IV)
Vt Loss betore finance costs, tax, depreciation and amortization

expense (EBITDA) and exceptional items IIII+It(b)+II(c)l
VII Tax exDense

Current tax
Deferrecl tax
Total tax exPense

VIII Loss after tax (V-vU)

IX

lncome tax effect

Other Comprehensive tncome/(Loss), net of tax
X Total Comprehensive Loss, net of tax (vIlI+IX)

Loss Per share
Basic & Diluted
(Nominal value of share INR 10 each)

\

19
20

289.119,302 219,013,495

(220,861)

( 860.33)

21
22

24

168,205,059
15,7?2,326

1,461,O44

156,606,683
7,a32,529
2,134,027

30
30

25

30

164,74

47 6,449

( 531.46)

terms of our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP (!O1248W/W-IOOO22)
Chartered Accountants

on behalf of the Board of Directors of

(DIN 02797819)
t4embershio No.098113

Place: New Delhi e?Y.9

pta

)'



of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

flow from operatlnq activities I
(73,051,439)

2,734,O27
(37,477\
102,066
ao7 ,444
r17 ,946

(3,602,899)

Depreciation and amortization expense
Profit on sale of assets (net)

(47,4O4,r27\

r,467 ,O4a

4,874,295
6,629,769

(6s,663)
( 13)

cost on inter corDorate deposits & Others
of impairment) of ProDerW plant and equiDment

Unclaimed balances/liabilities written back (net)
Interest income from deDosits and others

flows used In op€rating activities before changes in following

in operating assets and liabilities
(22 ,37 5 ,27 2)

4,O99,679
(5,367,930)

7 ,4rO,207
(6,092,692\
14,815,626

Decrease/ (lncrease) in trade receivables
Decrease/(lncrease) in other receivaDles
Decrease)/Increase in trade and other oavables

flow from investinq activities : (4,004,900)
83.300

7,303,852

of ProDertY Plant and EquiDment
of Pro9erty Plant and EouiPment

Fixed Deposits matured/ (made)

flow from financing activities I
58,500.000

(23,395,432)
(794,35r)

34.000,000
(9,779,873)

(304,108)
Proceeds from borrowinqs
ReDavment of borrowinqs

of cash & cash equivalents as at end of the Year

Balances with banks
- on current accounts 1,879,111

Summary of material accountinq policies

See accompanyinq notes to the financial statements'

In terms of our report of even date attached

10124aW/w-100022) on behalf of the Board of

ip No.098113

Vt't



Mosaic Media ventures Private Limited
Statement of chanqes In equiw for the vear ended l'larch 31, 2024

A. Equiw share CaDltal ( Refer Note 11)
Eouitv Shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fullv Daid up

Particulars
Balance as at April1,2(J22
Changes during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Changes during the year

Balance as at lilarch 31, 2024

B. tnstruments entirelY in nature of equiw (Reter Note 1lA)
Preference shares of INR 1o each lssued, subscribed and fullv Daid

Partlculars
Bafance as at April l, 2022
Chanqes durinq the vear
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Chanqes durinq the Year
Balance as at March 31, 2024

c. Other Equity attributable to equity holde.s (Refer Note 12)

Particulars

Balance as at Aprll 1,2022
Loss for the Year
Addition during the Year
Other comPrehensive loss

Balance as at March 31' 2023
Loss for the Year
Addition during the Year

Other comPrehensive income

Balance as at l.larch 31, 2024

See accompanylng notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co' LLP (101244w/w-1OOO22)
Chartered Accountants

Reserves & SurPlus

Securitiespremium Retainedearnings

Number of shares
a2,200

45,772
5,868

91,640

Number of shares
3,859

3,8-59

3,a59

79L,397,900

24,957 ,564

816,355,464

836,294,924

Placei New Oelhi
Date: 08.O5.2024

. Amount in INR
822,OOO

35,7 20
857,72O

58,680
916,4OO

Amount in INR
34,590

38,590

38,590

(a33,272,La71
(73.0s1,439)

(220,861)
(9O5t544,4a7 )

(47 ,4O4,r2r)-

476,489
(9s3,472,rL9)

Total

GL,A74,2|J7)
(73,051,439)

24,957,564
(220,E61)

(9O,189,O23)
(47,4O4,L2L)

L9,939,464
476,449

(rt7,t77,LgL)

Fol on behalf of the Board of
l..losaic Ventures Private

155591 02797879\
David.tones
Partner
Membershrp No.098113

Ptacei New Delhi
Dater 08.05.2024

'l
I
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Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to fanancial statements for year ended 31 March, 2024

1. Company overview

Mosaic Media ventures Private Limited ('the company') was incorporated on February 6,

2007 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956' The company is engaged in the

business of gathering and distributing news, analysis and research for b.usiness,

management, investors and general public and dissemination of news through electronic

mediJand portals which is displayed on Company's website and mobile based platforms.

It also organizes events and trainings for the industry through conferences'

The company is the wholly owned subsidiary of HT Media Limited. Information on

related party relationship of the Company is provided in Note 27'

The registered office of the company is located at HT House, 2nd Floor, KG Marg,

Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001

Thefinancia|statementsoftheCompanyfortheyearended3lMarch,2024are
approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 08

May , 2024.

2. Material accounting Policies followed by company

2.f Basas of Preparation

Thefinancia|statementsofthecompanyhavebeenpreparedinaccordancewiththe
Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind-AS') ipecified in the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) aulesl zot5 (as amendedi under Section 133 of the Compantes Act 2013

(the "accounting principles generally accepted in India")'

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the

financia I statements.

The financiat statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the

followingassetsandliabilitieswhichhavebeenmeasuredatfairvalue:

- certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value (refer accounting

policy rega rd ing financial instruments)'

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the

CompanY's functional cu rrencY.

2,2, summary of material accounting policies

a) Current versus non- current classification
Thecompanypresentsassetsandliabilitiesintheba|ancesheetbasedoncUrrent/
non-current ilassification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Expected to
cycle

be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating

dih
?trttbh;/o9

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Lamited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March' 2O24

o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle

a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period'

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

r It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period' or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current'

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities'

b) Foreign currencies

Trans initiallY at their

respe at the lifies for

recog ns, the te if the

avera the clat

MonetaryassetsandIiabiIitiesdenominatedinforeigncurrenciesaretrans|atedat
the functional currency spot rates of e> change at the reporting date'

Exchange differences arising on the settlement-of monetary items or on restatement

of the company,s monetari items at rates different from those at which they were

initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial statements' are

recognized as income d. as expenses in the period in which they arise'

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currencv are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial

transactions.

c) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

IiabiIityinanorder|ytransactionbetweenmarketparticipantsatthemeasurement
date.Thefairva|uemeasurementisbasedonthepresumptionthatthetransaction
io sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability' or

. In the absence of a
asset or lia bility

principal market, in the



Mosaic Media ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 l4arch, 2O24

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use

The company valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which suificient data are avaiiable to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs'

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which inputs are inputs other than quoted prices

included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which inputs are unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a

recurring basis, the company determines whether transfers have occurred between

levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of

assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset

or liabilitv and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above'

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value'

d) Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will

f|owtothecompanyandtherevenuecanbere|iab|ymeasured,regard|essofWhen
the payment is being made.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount

oi tiun*.1ion price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance

oblioation. The transaction price of goods sold and se is net of



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financia! statements for year ended 31 l4arch, 2024

variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the
Company as part of the contract'

The Company applies the practical expedient to not to disclose the amount of the
remaining performance obligations for contracts with original expected duration ot
less than one year,

Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers, The Company has concluded that
it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in

all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to
inventorv and credit risks, Invoices (other than subscription revenue) are payable

usually within 30-50 days

Goods and service Tax (GST) is not received by the company on its own account,
Rather, it is tax collected on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excludec

from revenue.

contract asset represents the company's right to consideration in exchange for
services that the company has transferred to a customer when that right is

conditioned on something other than the passage of time'

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is

required to do invoicing, the same is presented as Unbilled receivable'

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due

lwnLnever is eariier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related
goods or services. contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the company
oerforms under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services

to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is

recognised:

Subscription revenue
Revenue in this respect is recognized over the period of the subscription, in

accordance with the established principles of accrual accounting. unearned revenues

are reoorted on the balance sheet as deferred revenue'

Event/Conference revenue
Evenvconference revenue is recognized on the completion of event activity and sum

received in advance, if any, for event is recognized as advance from customers'

Advertisement revenue
Revenue is recognized as and when advertisement is displayed and when it is
.'orobable,, that the company will collect the consideration it is entitled to in

exchange for the services it transfers to the customer'

Syndication revenue
Revenue from Content Selling is recognized as and when the content is provided to

the customer.



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financia! statements for year ended 31 March, 2024

Significant financing component
The company receives advance payments from customers for subscription services.
There is a significant financing component for these contracts considering the length
of time between the customers' payment and the subscription service, as well as the
prevailing interest rate in the market. As such, the transaction price is discounted,
using the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounts
the lash selling price of subscription service to the amount paid in advance)' The

rate is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing

transaction between the Company and customers at contract inception'

Interest income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income is

recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts

the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financtal asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating

the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by

considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected

credit losses. Interest income is includel in other income in the statement of profit

and loss.

e) Taxes

Current income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss

for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax'

current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax

authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961'

current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used

to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reporting date,

current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised

outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). current
tax items are recognrsed in correlation to the underlying transaction either in. ocl or

directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax

returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to

interpretation and establishes provisions where approprlate'

Appendix c to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes dealing with accounting for uncertainty over

income tax treatments ls applicable from accounting periods beginning on or after 1

Apri|2olg.Itdoesnothaveanymateria|impactonfinancia|statementsofthe
Company.



Mosaic Media ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2024

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided considering temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry

forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

agaiist which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused

tix credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting clate and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. unrecognised

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred

tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to

app|yintheyearwhentheassetisrea|isedorthe|iabi|ityissett|ed'basedontax
rates(andtax|aws)thathavebeenenactedorSubstantivelyenactedatthe
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside

orofit or loss. Defeired tax items are recognrsed in correlation to the underlylng

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity'

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if it has a legally

enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable

entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,

or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period

in which significant imounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

f) Property' Plant and equiPment

Thecompanyhasapp|iedforonetimetransitionoptionofconsideringth.e.carrying
cost of pioperty, plani and Equipment on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2019 as the

deemed cost u nder Ind-As'

Construction in progress ls stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses' if

any.

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any. such cost includes the cost of replacing part

of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if

the recognition criteria are met.



Mosaic Media ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March,2|J24

Cost comprises the Purchase
and any directly attributable
the intended use, AnY trade
purchase price.

price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
discounts and iebates are deducted in arriving at the

Recognition:
the c6st of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset

if, and only if :

(a)itisprobab|ethatfutureeconomicbenefitsassociatedWiththeitemWi||f|owto
the entity; and

(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably'

All other expenses on existing assets, including day-.to- day repair and m€inte-nance

"*p*Jitrr" 
and cost of replScing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and

loss for the period during which such expenses are lncurreo'

Deoreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

the assets as follows:

Type Useful lives estimated

by the management (in Years)

lomputers 3

Furniture and fixtures 10

f,ffice equipment 5

Server and Network 6

Property, Plant and Equipment which are added/disposed off during the year'

a"p?".iiiion is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of

add ition/deletion.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised

isderecognisedupondisposa|orwhennofutureeconomicbenefitsareexpected
fiom its ise or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 

. 
de- recog nition of the asset

i.afiufateO as the d ifference 
'b6tween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

imount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is

derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that future economlc

benefits associated with the expenditure will ilow to the company and cost of the

item can be measured reliablY.

Expenditure directlv rel utlYitv is capitalized - lnqlrecl

""lunJitur" 
incurred duri is capitalized as a part of indirect

construction cost to the e is related to construction or is
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Notes to financial statqments for year ended 31 March, 2024

incidental thereto. Other indirect costs incurred during-the construction periods

which are not related to construction activity nor are incidental thereto are charged

to Statement of Profit and Loss, Reinvested income earned during the construction
period is adjusted against the total of indirect expenditure'

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and

equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate,

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The

cost o;f intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the

date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost

less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generatedintangib|es,exc|udingcapita|iseddeve|opmentcosts,arenotcapita|ised
5nd the related ixpenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the

expenditure is incurred'

on transition to Ind-AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value

ofa||ofitslntangib|eassetsrecognisedasatApri|1,2019measured-asperthe
Indian GAAP and use that carting 'alue as the deemed cost of the Intangible

assets.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the conomic life and

assesled for impairment whenever there is an indication intangible asset

may be impaired' The amortisatlon period and the am method for an

intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each

|."poiing period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of

.onrr.nition of future 6conomic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to

modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as

changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with

finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss'

Intangible assets wtth indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for

impaiiment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The

assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite

life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to

finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i'e', at the date the..recipient

obtains c-ontrol) or when no future e:onomic benefits are expected from its use or

disposat. Any gatn or loss arising upon de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the

difference between the net disp;sal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)

is included in the statement of profit or loss'

Intangible asset comprises of cost related to software acquired and

Tech nology/Dataoase-saies Edge acquired. Both are amortized on straight line basis

over oeriod of three Years.
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subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in

connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment
to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get

ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they occur.

i) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration'

ComDanv as a lessee

The company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which

the underlying asset is of low value, The lease payments associated with these

leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

j) Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses/ at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment

testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset's recoverable

amount.Anasset'srecoverableamountisthehigherofanasset'sorcash-
generating unit,s (cGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value .in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or

lroups of assets. when the carrying amount of an asset or cGU exceeds irs

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair

value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no

suchtransactionscanDeidentified,anappropriateVaIuationmode|isused.These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly

traded Company's or other available fair value indicators'

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast

calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the company's CGUS to which

?syjb):/o9
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the individual assets are allocated, These budgets and forecast calculations generally

cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated

and apptied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
proieclions beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the

company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any

iase, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, iidustries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the

market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss'

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an

indication that previously recognised
decreased. If such indication exists, t
recoverable amount' A previously rec
there has been a change in the a

recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is

limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable

amount, nor exceeo the cairying amount that would have been determined, net of

depreciation,hadnoimpairment|ossbeenrecognisedfortheassetinprioryears'
such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is

carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation

increase,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at

the cGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying

value may be imPaired.

k) Provisions

Provisionsarerecognisedwhenthecompanyhasapresentob|igation(|ega|or
constructive)asaresu|tofapastevent,itisprobab|ethatanoutf|owofresources
embodyingeconomicbenefitswi||berequiredtosett|etheob|igationandare|iab|e
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. when the company expects

some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example' under an insurance

contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the

reimbursementisVirtua||ycertain.Theexpensere|atingtoaprovisionispresented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement'

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a

current pre-tax rare that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability'

Whendiscountingisused,theincreaseintheprovisionduetothepassageoftimeis
recognised as a finance cost.

l) EmPloyee benefits

Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans:

All employee beneiits payable/ava ilable within twelve months of rendering the

service are classified employee benefits Benefits such as salaries'

wagesandbonusetc'inthestatementofprofitand|ossintheperiod
in which the employee lated service'

9ryY.9
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Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme'
The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident

fund.

The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an

expense,'when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable

to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a

liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid

exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,

then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,

for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund'

Gratuity
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined

benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method'

Re- measurements, comprlsing of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized

immediately in the balance she;t with a corresponding debit or credit to retained

earnings through ocl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability'

The company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation

as an exDense in the Statement of profit and loss:

. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and

losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
. Interest expense

Compensated Absences
Aicumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is

treated as short term employee benefit. -he Company measures the expected cost

of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the

unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date'

Re- measu rements, comprlsing of actuarial gains and losses, are immediately taken

to the statement of profit und- lort and are not deferred. The company presents the

|eaveasacurrent|iabi|ityintheba|ancesheettotheextentitdoesnothavean
unconditionaIrighttodeferitssett|ementforl2monthsafterthereportingdate.

WhereCompanyhastheunconditiona||ega|andcontractua|righttodeferthe
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non- current

lia bilitv.
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Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2024

m) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity'

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial lssets (other than trade receivable which is recognised at transaction

frice as per Ind AS 115) are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of

iinancial assets not recoided at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs

that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset'

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:

. Debt instruments at amortised cost

. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit

or loss ( FVTPL)

.Equityinstrumentsmeasuredatfairva|uethroughothercomprehensiveincome
(FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A'debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions

are met:

a)Theassetishe|dwithinabusinessmode|whoseobjectiveistoho|dassetsfor
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

so|e|ypaymentsofprincipa|andinterest(SPPI)ontheprincipaIamountoutstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method' Amortised cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

iorii inut aie an iniegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance

income in the profit oi loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the

Drofit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables'

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a

Corpuny of similai financlal asseirs) is piimarily derecognised (i'e' removed from the

Company's balance sheet) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired' or

. The C-ompany has transferred its rights to receive. cash flows from the asset or

has assumed'an obligation to pay th-e received cash flows in full without material

delay to a third party under a ''pass-through' arrangement; ild .":tI-" 
t^ fl, t1"-

Comiany has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset' or



Mosaic Media ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 itlarch' 2O24

(b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset'

when the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or

has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor

|."trin"d substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred

control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the

extent of the Company continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also

iecognises un utrociut"d liability. the transferred asset and the associated liability

are ireasured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company

has retained.

continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred

asset is ;easured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the

maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In Lccordance with Ind_AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (EcL)

model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financia

assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
' e,9., loans, debt securities. deposits, tr.de receivables and bank balance'

b)Tradereceivab|esoranycontractua|right.toreceivecashoranotherfinancia|
urs"t that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 115 (referred

to as'contractual revenue receivables' in these financial statements)'

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss

allowance on:
. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track

.nung;J in credit risk. Rather, ii recognises impairment loss allowance based on

lifetirie ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition'

For recognition of impairment loss on other fi risk exposure' the

C;.p*; determines that whether there has b crease in the credit

risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has ificantly' 1z-month

icr- lt ,t"O to provi-de for impairment loss' risk has increased

iilniri.antty, lifeiime ECL is used' If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the

instrumentimprovessucnthatthereisno|ongerasignificantincreaseincreditrisk
sinceinitialrecognition,thentheentitvrevertstorecognisingimpairmentloss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

LifetimeECLaretheexpectedcredit|ossesresu|tingfroma||possib|edefau|tev-ents
over tne expected life of a financial instrument' The 12-month ECL is a portion of the

lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months

after the rePorting date.

As a practical exPedient, the Com

imoairment loss allowance on portfoli
orovision matrix to determlne

receiva bles. The provision matrix
USCS

; trad

$s{h

h<t
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is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

EcL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This
amount is reflected under the head'other expenses'in the P&L, The balance sheet
oresentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables:
ECL is Dresented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount'

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timelv basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)

financial assets, i,e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/

orig ination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognitaon and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge' as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans

and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Companyls financial liabilities include trade and other payables' loans and

borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments'

Subsequent measurem€nt
The me-asurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described

DEIOW:

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest- bea ring loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised

in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR

a mortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premlum on

acouisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR

amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

?d-* s)
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This category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is

treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of fanancia! instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in

the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand

and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value'

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

o) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:

-the orofit attributable to owners of the Company

-by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial
year.

Diluted earnings Per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic

earnings per share to take into account:

-the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares, and

-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been

outstandingassumingtheconversionofa||di|utivepotentiaIequityshares.
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Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 vla?ch, 2024

p) Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance costs, tax,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the
statement of profit and loss. The company measures EBITDA on the face of profit/
(loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the Company does not
include deDreciation and amortization expense' finance costs and tax expense'

q) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose

existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation
that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settie the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare

cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be

measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements, contingent assets are only
disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

2,3. Significant accounting iudgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures.

uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected

in future Deriods.

The areas involving critical estimates are as below:

Defaned benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity

obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves

maliing various assumptions thlt may differ from actual developments in the future.

These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and

mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term

nature,adefinedbenefitobIigationishigh|ysensitivetochangesinthese
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date'

Theparametermostsubjecttochangeisthediscountrate.Indeterminingthe
appropriate discount rate ior plans operated in India,.the management considers, the

interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the

post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific

countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to

demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on

exoecled future inflation rates for the respective countries, Refer Note-29.
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The areas involving critical iudgement are as below:

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on

Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period'

Taxes
uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations,
changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the

wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of
extsting contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and

the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions. could necessitate

future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded, The company
establishe! provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such

orovisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax

assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and

the responsible tax authority. such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide

variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of

the Companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is

p.urur" that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.

bignificant management judgement is required to dete_rmine the amount of deferred

tai assets that can be rec6gnised, based upon the likely timing and the le-vel of

future taxable profits togethei with future tax planning strategies' Refer Note-30.
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Note 3 : Prooertv, Plant and EoulDment

Partlculars computers Offlce Server and
Equipm€nt NetlvorkCost

7,375,254 2,275,927 1,015,631
3,941,250 63,650

1,508,232
9,AO9t272 2t339,577 1,016,53r

7,744 148,749 118,387

9,801,528 2,l90,a2a E9a,2/r4

(Amount In INR)
Leasehold Total

ImProvement5

Casl.
As at agril l, 2022
Addltions
Less : Disposals/ adjustments
As at M.rch 31, 2023
Additions
Less l Disposals/ adjustments

As at March 31, 2024

Accumulat6d Depreclation/
ImDtlrment
As at April 1, 2022
lmpairment charge (refer note
below)
Depreciatlon charge ror the Year
Less : Disposals/ adjustments

As at March 31, 2023

Reversal of Impalrment (refer note
below)
Depreciation charge for the year 7'396,771

904,986 676t4_34

r7,827

5,746,630 2,oO5,294
67,97A 49,969

t,t22,727 764,879
1,456,404

6,480,927 2,220,142 922,813 676,434

G7,974)

676,434

576,434

67 6,434

1'-,345,246
4,O04,9OO
r,5o4,232

13,441,9r4

95r,314

12,a90,600

to,333,344
r17,947

1,305,433
1,456,404

10,3oo,316

(rr7,947)

t,425tlor

a99,O3O

ro,709,440

3,541,594
2,1A1,160

(49,959)

25,229 4,101

Less : Disposals/ adjustments

As at March 31, 2024
Net Block
As at March 31, 2023
As at lil.rch 31, 2024

l. Additional information for whlch imDalrment loss has been recoqnized ar€ as und€r:

1)
2)
3) time of Phvsical verification

4) Nitl
Er ecovery of assets

7,357 14r,659 73,580 676,434

7.502.363 2,053,743 453'334

3,32a.,345 119,435 93,a18
1,999,165 137.0!5 44'9rO

s'r!{h

?Vo9



l4arb xadb Ymtrru. FdY.t! U||rltld
ot€r to llnlndll !t t mtnta for tfu yaar Gnd.d ltlatdr 31, 2O2a

otr a ! Int nClble ArEd and lntlng[bb L!€ta undGt dGvG]oDm.nt

(Amount ln INR )
'i,!t Boot v.tua 

- xlrdr 31, 2O2a m23
Intanglbb assets 40,947

Tot l #,94'
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NotG6 to finanda! ttat€m€nts for tte Y€41 and€d Harch 31, 2024

ote 5 ! Bruak uD of financlal aacd carled at amortls€d co.t

Partlculars

Pardcularc Nota llarch 31, 2024 ].l.rch 31, 2023

Trade r€ceivables 7 53,160,283 35,659,306

Cash and cash equlvalents 8 1,879,111 9,943,O24

Other bank balances 9 1,131 1,059

Total 55,040,524 45,503,3E9

Notc 6 : tlon-curI€nt tax a$.ts (nat)

fiffi
turHd
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Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 3'-,2024

Note 8 : Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Balance with banks :

- On current accounts

Cash on hand

Total

Note 9 : Other bank balance

Particulars
Bank balances other than Note 8 above

- Deposits with banks with original maturity of more than three
months but less than twelve months

Total

Note 10 : Other current assets

Particulars
Preoaid exDenses
Balance with government authorities

Advances given
Total

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024
(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2023

7,879,r11 9,942,622

402

9,943,O24t,879,lll

March 31, 2024
1,276,160
2,LLg,57 3

7,004.764
roAo3,497

1 1?1

1,131

1,059

1,O59

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2023

610,154
4,873,735

9,0r9,287
t4,5O3t176



Particulars
At Aprll !, 2022

Changes durlng the year

At arch 31,2023
Changes during the year

At llarch 31, 2024

]'losaic l,{edla Ventur.3 Private Llmlted
t{otes to flnancial stataments for the y€ar endcd arch31,2024

I{ote 11 | Share caoltal
Authorised share €Dltal Equlty Shares

Iumber of shares amountInI R

190.000 1,900,000

190,000

190,000 1,900,000

Terms/ rlghts attached to equlty sha.es

The Company has only one class of equity shares havinq par value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of €quity

shar€s is entitled to one vote per share, In the event of liqudation of the Company, the holders of equity

shar€s will be entitl€d to receive remarning assets of th€ Company, after distribution of all preferent'al

amounts The distribution will be in p.oportion to th€ number of equitv shares held bv the shareholders'

r,900,000

Issued and subscrlbed capital
Equity shar6 of IIIR 10 each lssucd, subs.rlbed and tully paid l{umber of shares

At April 1, 2022

Changes during the year

At [arch 31, 2023

Changes during the year

At Harch 31, 2024

a2,2OO

3,57 2

4s,772
5,868

9L,640

Amount In Il{R
a22,OOO

35,720
8s7,72O

58,680

916,4OO

Reconcillatlon ofthe shares outstandlng at the beghnlng and at the and of tfte yeer :

Eouiw shares
Particulars llarch 31,2024

Number of shares Anount in Il{R

a5.772 457,720

5,868 58,680

9r,54O 915,4OO

Preference 5h.r€5
Number of shares Amount in INR

10,000 100'ooo

March 31, 2023
Number of shares amount in rNR

Shares outstanding at the beqinning or the vear
Shar€s issued during the Year

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

l{ote 11 A i Instruments entirely equity in nature
Authorised share caoltal
Particulals
At ADril 1, 2022
Chanoes durino the vear
At [arch 31, 2023
Chanoes durino the vear
At Harch 31, 2024

Issued and subscrib€d caoital
Preference shares of INR tO each lssued, subscrlbed and tully
oald
At ADril 1,2022
Chanoes durino the Year
at [arch 31, 2023
Chanqes durino the vear
at March 31,2024

Preference shares
ParticulaJs

Shdres outstandinq at the beqinninq oF the vear
Shares issued durinq the vear
Shares outstandinE at the end ot the Year

a2,200
3,512

ast772

822,000
35,720

457,72|J

10,ooo

ro,ooo

100,ooo

roo.000

Terms/ rlchts aftached to pr€ference shares
The Colnpany has two classes oF preference shares
(r) Non ;umutative computsonty fu y convertibte partrcipating preference shares. The ienure for these shares is 19 vears after which these shar€s shall

;; conv€rted to equity shares (in 1:1 ratio). The rate of divided is Oolo on such share and are partrcipating in natlre.

(ii) Non-cumutative fu y and computsority conve.tibl€ non-participating preference shares. The tenure lor these shares is 20 vears after which these

itrires shall be converted to equity shares (in rrl ratio). The raleof divided is o% on such shar€ and are non -particrpating 
'n 

nature.

Itumber of shares Amount in INR

Reconcillation of the shar€s outstandinq at the bepinnlnq and at the end of the vear :

3,Es9 3a,590

3,a59 34,590

3,8;e 38,;eo

3,859 38.590

3,a59 38's90

H.rch 31.2024 March 3l' 2023
Number of shares AmountinINR Number of shares amountinlllR

3.8s9

3.E59

38.590

3a,590



llo6alc Ledla Ycntur€s Prlyate Llmlted
iotes to tinanclrl statemenls for the v6ar cnded Harch 31. 20211

share5 held bv holdinq/ ultlmate holding co|npanY .ndl or thalr sub3ldlaries/ associat€5
Our of equity 6nd preference shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, subsidiary of holdin0 company are as belowl

(Amount In tllR )
llarch 3L, 2024 tlarch 31. 2023

916,400 A57,]2O

38,590 38,590

Paftlculars
HT M€dl. Ltd, the holdlng company

91,640 equity shares (Match 31,2023 - a5,772) of INR 10 each
fully paid

' 
3,859 preference sira;es (March 31, 2023 - 3,859) of INR 10 each
fullv oald

Detalls of shareholders holding fiore than sqb sharca In thc companY
Particulars Harch 31, 2024 arch 31' 2023

Nurnb€r of shares holallng umber of shares q6 holding

HT Hailla Ltd (the holdlng CompanY)

Equrly shar€s oflNR 10 each fully paid

Preference shares of INR 10 each fullv pard

shareholdino of Promoters as below:
At Narch 31, 2024

Promoter Nama

91,640
3,859

100.00%i 8s,772 1oo.oo%

100.000,6 3,859 100,00%

5,858

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholdeG/members and other declaration recelved from the sharehoiders reqarding beneficial

interest. the above shareholding repres€n!s both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

l{o. ot shares at
the beginning of

a5.172

E9,63r

l{o. of sharea Et
Gnange ounng tha end ofthe 'yb 

of total ahares
tne year 

vear

9l.640 7%100%

- 3,859
5,a6a 95,2199

1000/0 oah

q{r Change during
the year

Equity Shares
H-r Media Limited

Pref€r€nce shat€3
HT M€dia Limited

At March 31,2023

Promotcr llam€

Equity Shares
HT lLiedia Lrmlted

Prefe.ence shares
HT Media Limited

Total

Total
3,859

46,o59

,tlg"]||in* cha,nsedurrns "f,;1.T".11".1' q6ortotarshares *.li:1.":1.'-
tnt 

""tt- 
tne year 

vear

A2,2OO 3,572 a5'772 r0oo/o 4oh

- 3,859 1000/0

3,572 89,631
0.

9ty:f'o)



l'losaic N€alla ventuies Private Limited
Notes to tlnancial 3tetemente tor the vaar endcd l|a]ch 31, 2024

ilote 12 : Other equltv

Partlcula.s
securities premium

Retained earnings

lotal

SccurltlaJ p.emium
Particulera
At Aprll 1, 2022
Increase during the y€ar

At rarch 31. 2OZ3

Increase dur|ng the Year
At March 31, 2024

(Amount in INR)
l.{arch 31, 2024 March 11, 2023

a36,294,928 816,355,454
(953;4t2,rrs) (so6.s44,4a7)

(LL7,r77,L.iri (90,1a9,023)

AfiOUNt IN INR
79r,397 tgOO

24,957,564

415,3S5,454
19,939,464

a36,294,928
utlllsed only for lhited purposes such asSecurities premium ls used to record the premium on lssLle of shares. The reserve can

issuance of bonLrs shares in accordance with the provislons of the Companles Act, 2013

Retained ca.nino3

Particulars
At Aprll 1, 2022
Net loss for th€ year
Less : ltems of other comprehensive loss recognis€d directly in retained earnhgs

- Remeasurement loss on defined benent plans. net of taJ(

At uarch 31,2023
Net loss ior the year

Less : ltems of other compreheosive income recognised dir€ctly in retained €arnings

- Remeasurem€nt gain on defin€d ben€flt plans, net of tax

At l.larch 31, 2024

llote 13 : Non-currcnt borrowlngs
Particula15

Inter-corDorate deooslt (r€fer note 27a) (r€fer note I below)
Total

amount ln Il{R
(a33,27 2,L47)

(73 ,OSt,439)

(220,861)
(906,544,447)

(47,4O4,12L)

476,449
(953,47 2,Lr9)

t|{arch3L,2024 llarch 31,2023 :

65,553,848 24,723,863
55,563,8ir8 24,72a,A63

Note -r
iniei-corporate oeposrt (IcD) drawn from HT Media Limted (Holding company) at overnlght MIBoR + 551 bps compounded on a monlhlv

basis r€Davable within 60 months from drawn date.

Debt reconciliation:

Particula13

As at I Acril, 2022

Add : Interest accrued movement
talanc. as at March 31, 2023

Add : Interest accrued mov€ment
Balanc. .3 at t'larch 31, 2024

llon-€urr€nt
Borrowlnoi 

_

34,000,000
(9 779,873)

503'736
24,723.863

58,500'000
(23 ,395 ,432\

5,835,4r8
65,663,849

(Amount in INR)
Total

34.000,000
(9,779,873)

503,736
24,223.fl63

58,500,000
(23 ,395 ,432)

5,835,418
65,553,849
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i{osaic lledia V€nture3 Private Liditeal
Notes to financial atatements for the Year €ndad [arch 31, 2024

Note 15 : Other fin.nclal liabilities (Amount in II{R)

lParticulars

Employee related PaYables

Non- Current

r{.arch 3\ 2024 arch 31, 2023 arch 31, 2024

Current

Total

2,A69,444

2ta69,444

- 15,939,480

- 16,939,480

(Amount In rNR)
llarch 31,2024 l,larch 31,2023

March 31,2023
18,081,268

18,081,268

Br€ak uD offinanclal llabilities calried at amonit€d cost

Particulars

Borrowings 65,653,848

28,9AL,769

t9,a08,924

r14A54,541

52,575,405
399,708

s2,975,rL3
52,975t1r3

24,723,863

52,722,389

13

l4
l5

iTrade payables

'imployee related payables

Total financial liabilltle. c..;ied;t alnorti.€d cost

Note 15: Contr.ct liabilltles

Particulars

Deferred revenue
Advances from customers
'Total
i'iurrent

Note 17 : Provlsiona

'Particulars

Provision for leave benefits (refe.l: note 29)

:irovision for qratuitY (refer note 29)
Total

I{ote 18 : Other current liabilities

PaJtkulars
StatutorY dues
GsT Payable
Total

64,562,433
3,097,569

67,660,002

57,65O,OO2

5,OOs,3Ar

2,947 '970
1,575,418

4,523,344

Non'current
lrarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

.1,113,194
5,005,381 6'228,377

7,341,57l

18,081,268

95,527,520

(Amount in INR)
Cuar€nt

ll|arch 31,2024 l'larch 31, 2023
L048,842 ..399,699
2.419,433 1,965.012

3,46A,275 2.365'7rt

l,larch 3t, 2024
(Amount in INR)

l'larch 31,2023

Non- cuarent

Amount of revenue recognised during Fy 2023-24 from contract liabilities at the beglnning of the year is INR

4,46,06,79r (Fv 2022-23 INR 5,18,87,034)

Amount accrued during FY 2023-24 amounts to INR 5,92,91.680 (FY 2022-23 INR 4'40'40'561)

(Amount In l1{Rl
tlarch 31,2024 Itarch 31, 2023

4,136,254
6,054

4,142,306



Mosaic Media ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended l'larch 31, 2024

Note 19 : Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers

Particulars
Sale of services
- Special events and conventions revenue

- Advertisement revenue

- SubscriDtion revenue

March 31,2024
(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2023

110,085,714

14,277 ,943
92,474,r22

|,771,776

2A9,OL3,495

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2023

2r9,Ot3,495

219,013.49s

(Amount in INR)
March 31.2023

169,837,801

B,4t4,903
103,781,969

L,67 |,483- Syndrcation revenue
.Other operating revenues
- Others
Total

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the Gontracted price is as tollows:

Particulars
Contract price

Adjustments to the contract Price

Revenue recognised

413,145
2a9,119,302

March 31,2024
300,515,018

(rr,395 ,7 L6)

2a9,L19'3O2

Note 20 : Other income

Particulars
Interest income on EIR basis
- Bank deposits

- On Income tax refund

Other non - operating income

Unclaimed balances/liabilities written back (net)

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles

Net reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment

Miscellaneous income
Total

Note 21 : Employee benefits expense

Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29)

Gratuity expense (refer note 29)

workmen and staff welfare expenses

lotal

Note 22 : Finance costs

Particulars
lnterest on Inter Corporate Deposit borrowings

Interest to Others

Interest arisinq from revenue contracts

Total

Note 23: Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars
Depreciation of tangrble assets (

Amortization of intangible

Total

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

160,526,427

5,518,803

2,009,539
149,890

16a,2O5,059

March 31, 2024
6,626,574

3,195

9,142,557

15'772,326

March 31, 2024
7,426,r0L

40,947

L,467,O4a

12,645

579,168

3,602,499
31,477

242,893
4,469.Oa2

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2023

r49,175,847
4,683,855

1,838,633

908,354

156,606,683

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2023

8O7 ,844

7 ,O24,645
,,a32,529

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2023

1,305,433

1,428,594

2,734,O27

72

13

65,653

2,7 17

517,a88

sEla

pvt



Mosaic fedia ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 24 : (Xher expenses

Particulars

Event and training management expenses

Data collection charges

Advertising and sales promotions

Rent

Legal and professional fees

ReDairs and maintenance expenses

March 31,2024
(Amount In INR)
l,larch 31, 2023

78,O54,971

tt,7 18,476

|,569,73r
4,016,364

8,831,013

30,000

6,632,054
5,000

70,483,764

3,877 ,439
1,389,436

660,000

1,011,436.
653,809

99,916

IL7,946
102,066
LO7 ,476

L29,360,777

(Amount In INR)
March 31, 2023

550,000

60,000

50,000

66O,OOO

(amount in INR)
March 31, 2023

1,7 64,370

102,066
(724,79O)

|,r42,246

Communication costs

Rates and taxes

47,222,462
10,269,060

9,422,424
3,452,416

6,304,576
47 ,391

6,442,O02

653,211

13,697 ,927
2,364,236

2,703,929
LA'T,sOO

929,970
699,401

30,7 r-o

4,874,295
724,968

Travelling and conveyances

website hosting and related expenses

Recruitment expenses
Payment to auditors (refer note I)
Insulance
Payment gateway charges

Exchange differences (net)

Impairment of Property plant and equipment

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts and advances (refer note Il)
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note I: Payment to auditors

Particulars
As auditor :

- Audit fee
- Tax audit fee

In other capacities :

Reimbursement of exPenses

Total

Particulars
Opening Balance of provision for doubtful debts and advances

Provision Created

Provision written back

closing Balance of provision for doubtful debts and advances

Note II: Allowances for Bad doubtful debts and advances (includes bad debts written off)

March 31, 2024

151,696,474

March 31, 2024

1,337,500

120,000

l,457,sOO

L,I42,246
4,874,295

(84,875)

5,93r,666



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3\ 2024

Note 25 : Other comprehensive income
The disaqqreqation of chanqes to OCI bv each tvpe of reserve in equitv is shown below :

Note 26 : Earnings Per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share a.ounts-a.e catculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period'

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that

would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares'

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

During the year endcd March 3L, 2024
Pafticulars
Remeasurement profit on defined benefit plans

, Total

During the year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans

Total

Particulars
-Loss attlibutable to equity holders (INR)

Weighted average number of Equity shares for
earnings per share (lakhs)

ii^T:,T;J.l"jf*aee number or Equitv shares ror
earninqs per share (lakhs)

Loss per shart
Basic earnings Per share
Diluted earninqs Per share *
*Bein9 anti-dillutive compulsory convertible
have not been considered

Retained earnings
476,489
476,449

Retained earnings
(22O,e6r)

(22O,861)

March 31, 2024
(47,4O4,L2L)

(Amount in INR)
Total

476,449
476,489

Total
(220,861)
(22O,861)

(Amou.,nt in INR)
March 31, 2023

(73,oFL,439)

a4,gLL

a4,9LL

( 860.3 3 )
( 860.3 3 )

basic 89,196

diluted 89,196

( 531.46 )
( 5 31.46)

perference shares



Hocslc sdlr Ventut€t Priy.tr Llmited
Xot€3 to flnrnd.t statamcntr for dte year sndcd l.la.Gh 31, 2024

l{ot€ 27: R€l.ted DarW trans.ctlons
Followlng are the ralrtad partl€r and trun.actionr antersd wlth r€lrt€d p.rtl€s for th. televrnt llnanclal year I

i) Ust of r€lated Dartles and r€l.tlonrhlD5:-

Partles havlnE direct or Indirect control ovet the Company
(Holding Company)

Holdlno comoanv - HT Media Limited
Ultlmate holdlng Company - The Hlndustan Times Llmited

Fello$, subsldlary (with whom transactlons have occurred
during the year)

HT Dloital Streams Limlted

ll) Transactlons with relsted prrtles
Refer note 27 A

iii) Tqrms 6nd condltlons of trun3.Gtiont with rahted
DartleS
ini saGs to anO ourchases from related parues are made on terms equlvalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactlons. Outstanding balances

at the vear-end are uns€cured and Interest free and settlement occurs in cash'

ffia
h1t
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Mosaic Media ventures Private Limlted
Notes to linancial stat€ments for the year ended March 31. 2024

Note 28 : Capital and Other commitments
There are no caoital and other commitments as on March 31, 2024 and March 3l' 2023

Note 29 : Employee Benefits

The DrinciDal assumDtions used in determininq qratuity obliqation for the Company's plans are shown below:

The company has a defined benefit gratuiry plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,

1972. Every employee who has COmpleted five years or more of services gets a gratuity on separation at 15 days

salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of services.

The following tables summarises the components of net employee benefits recognrzed in the statement of profit

and loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet :

Defined gratuity Plan
Chanqes in the defined benefit obliqation as at March 3L,2024 and March 31, 2023 :

ost _, = _ *_ '12?);8.
actuarial) (qaD) I losJ AiSilqfjo!!'

;:.ehe.!se,JlCem,osraphic.a.,s,g!|lnptions
,- chanqe in fina s -
l- exp-err-elre.-vq I experrencJ vs assu
- trAlsfer in/ (out)
geneflls paid
Total

Particula.rg . 

-,Digegunt IAte (Per annum)
9el,ary,qtoUfth lq!e, (Per annum)
:Wi,tldrawal rate (Per allluqD..-

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7.10o/o 7 35o/o

7.OO9o 7 OO9o

32.900h 24.200/o

Kd
'r*)

6v:{
oti
(rr\



Mosaic Medla Ventures Private Limited
Notes to tinancial statements for the vear end€d March 31, 2024

A quantitative sensitivitv analvsis for siqnificant assumption is as shown below:

Defined gratuity planl
(Amount in INR).

Paltlct44q Marc-h 31, 2024 March 3\ 2023
pefireq benefit__obliqation (Base) 

- 
.. -- 1,421L11 *. 9,!94,389- ,

The betow sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

ra4iculqr!

- €iil8?ir': r 'iff??;'Discount rate(-/+ 1olo)

.salery qrqwth La-te(-/1l o/e) 196p29 .. ,-- , (2q-3i5s8)'witfielr.awalrale(-/+jq%) .,, (338,2-63) ,. ..--- 2.72,707 |

The followinq pavments are maturity Drofile of Defined Benefit Obliqations in tuture vears:

pariicuiar! " 
March tl, ,tt. Jii::H:ll lil]

Within the next one year .. 2,419,433 L,966'OL2

l4ore than one year and upto fiue years 5,036,459 5,2A4'974
vJii ttran five years and upto ten vears l'623,402 2'A7a 

'557305,633 r,342,30rMore than ten vears
Totaf expecteC payments 9'3a5,927 11,4L1,844

Particulars
Assumptions
Drscount rate(-/+ 1olo)

Salarv qrowth !:,ete( -/+ 1olo )
withdrawal rate(-/+50o/o)

D_uEtion qf the defined beltefit Dla-LqDliqation
Particulars
Ranqe of duration

Defined contribution Plan

Particulars
Openinq balance
Benefits paid durinq the Year
Provided/ (written back) durrnq the year
Closinq balance

March 31, 2024 Maich 31,2023
3 Years 4 Years

B. Leave encashment (unfunded)
The Company recognizes the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on actuarial

valuation.

The expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment liabilify at the beginninq

and at the end of the year I

(Amo!nt in I!!B)
March,q,1,. ag24 ... March 31, 2023

5.518,803 4,643,855

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1,5r2,A93 r,459,454
(388,239) (rr7'424')
(75,Ar21 165'263

!,o48,A42 L,5r2,493



I,losaic llcdia ventures Private Limit€d
Notes to financial atatements fot the year.ndad tlarch 31' 2024

Not€ 30 : Defarred tax .ss€ta (net)
The maior comDonents of income tax exoense for the vear ended 3l March 2024 are :

Statament of Drofit .nd loss :

Profit or loss t€ction 
. (amountinrNRl

PartlculaB Larch 3t' 2024 l4arch 3l' 2023

Curront income tax :

curyeqt incomq tax charqe
Def€rred tEx :

Deferred tax charqe
Incode tgx erpenSa reportad in the atrtement of profit or lots

OCI 6cctlon :

Deferred tax related to items recoqnised in OCI durino in the Year , (Amount in IttR)

Partlculal3 l'larch 3l' 2024 l'l'tch 31' 2023

Net loss/(qain) on remeanirements of defined benefit plans

tncome tax ch.rgcd to OCI

Reconcitiation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indla's domestic tax rate for March 31. 2024 and March 31' 2023:
(lmount in INR)

Pa*icularr t'tarch 31' 2024 March 31' 2023

Accountinq foss berore income tax g7 '404'121\ (73'051'439)

At India's statutorv income tax rate of 25 l68qo (rr'930'669) (18'385 586)

At the e_ffactive income t x.rte (11'930'659) (18'385'585)

Non-recoqnition of deterred tax asset 11 930'669 1a'385'586

Incode tax elgena€ raported in the statement of Profit 'nd 
loss _

oeductib|Gtempor.rydifferences'unusedtax|oss€s,andunusedtaxGredibfo'whichnod€'Gr]edtax.ss€tisr€cognisedinthe
balance she€t as on 31 Itarch 2024: 

(Amount in tNR)

Perticulars l'larch 31' 2024 srch 31' 2023

Tefiporary difterences arising on:
-on Carry forwards business loss which are expected to expire in

Ff 24-25
FY 25-26
FY 26-27
Thereafter

- on unabsorbed depreciation (Available for infinite period)

- on WDV of Dropertv, plant and eouiDment
- on other lemporarY difference

49,970,464
/,677,47O

s54,523
4,527 ,4aS

38,483,220
7,122,139

666,869
3,632,563

49,90s,39161,669,942
oef€raed tax Asset

9e{a
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Eosaic iladia ventu.e3 Prlvate Llmited
Notcs to tlnanclal statements for the vcar anded arch 31, 2024

Note 31 :Contlngent Liabillti€s
There are no contlngent liability as on t'larch 31, 2024 and Flarch 31, 2023.

Note 32: Capltal managcm€nt
For the purpose of the companys capital management, capital includes issued eqully capltal, shar€ p.emlum and all

other eqlrity r€serves, The primary objective of the companies capital management is to maxlmis€ the shareholder

The Company manages its capitat structure and makes adjustm€nts in tlght of changes in economic conditions and the

requirements of the Rnancial covenants, To milintain or adjust th€ capital structure, the company may adjust the

divldend Dayment to shareholdeG, return capltal to shar€holders or issue n€w shares. The Company monitors capltal

using a geariflg ratio, which ts net debt divided by total capital and net debt The companv includes withln net debt,

inte.est bearinq loans and borrowlngs and interest accrued on borrowings

Partlculars

Totar Borrowings (refer note 13)

et Debt
Equlty & other equlty
Total capltal enploYed
Less : Intanqible Ass€t
Net capitel employed
Gearing ratio

(Anount in I R)
Malch 31, 2024 ltlarch 31,2023

65,663,848 24'723,853
55'563'a4A 24'723'85t

(r15,222,20r) (A9.292'7L31
(50.55a'353) (54'564,450)

- 40,947
(5O,s54353) (64'609,7971

-130 -38on

There is no breach of the terms and condltions with regards !o borrowings taken from Holding company (HT Media

Limit€d).

No chanqes were made in th€ objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31.

2024 and l4arch 31, 2023.

Note 33 : Fair valle3
The manag€rnent assessed tha! falr value of cash and cash equlvalents, other bank balances, other current financial

ass€ts. trade payabtes and oth€r current financial llabiliti€s appro)(imate thelr carryinq amounts that are reasonable

appro;imalons of falr vat'e largely due to the short term maturitles of th€se hstrum€nts. The fair value of the

tia;ilities is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction belween willing parties,

other than in a forced or liquldation sale

Partlculars

Financial llabillties measured at amortis€d
cost
Inter-corporate deposit (rerer note l3)

t{arch 31, 2024
(Amount in

ra.ch 31, 2023
Carrylng value Fair value

24,723,863

Carrying value Fair Yalue

65,663,848

hlerarchy level

l{ote 34 : Is.grnent Information

Thecompanyisenqagedmain|yintotheDigita|busioessandtherearenootherreportab|esegmentsasperlndAS
108 on Operating Segmenls. The management ol rhe Company monitors the operatlng results ol the aforesaid business

for the Durpose of makinq decisions about resource allocation and peformance assessment

Accordingly, the segment revenu€, segment resulls, total ca.rying amount of segmeni assets and segment liabilitles'

are as reilected ln the Findnciat statements as at and for rhe year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Informatlon about maior customers:

No singl€ (ustom€r represents 100,6 or more of the company's total revenue during the vear ended l'4arch 31' 2024 and

March 31,2023.



osalc trlcdia v€ntures Privatc Limited
Notes to flnanci.l statemenb tor the year ended l.larch 31, 2024

Note 35 : Financial rl6k manaoenrent obl€ctives and policies
The Company's pnncipal financial liabilities, comprises loans and bor.owings, trade and other payables, The main
ourDose of these financial ||abilitles is to finance th€ company's operations. The comPany s princlpal financial assets
anclude cash and cash equivalents that it derives dir€ctly from operatlons.

The Company is exposed to market risk and llquidity rlsk, Th€ Comp6ny's senlor management oversees lhe mitigatlon
of these risks. The Comoany s financial risk acuvities are governed by approp.late policles and procedures and that
financlal risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company's policaes and risk objectives,
The policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below:-

(1) r4ark.t risk
ttarket nsk is the risk lhat the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becaLlse of changes

in market orices, Harket risk comDrises interest rate risk and cu.rency risk Financial instruments affected by market
risk include loans and borrowings,

Interest rat€ risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that th€ fair value or fulure cash flows of a financlal instrumeol will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates, The companies exposure to the risk of chanqes in market interest rates relates
primarily to long-term Borrowings with floatlng interest rates (refer not€ l3)

The sensttivity to a reasonabty possible change in inter€st rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, with
all other variabl€s held constant, on floating rate borowlngs is as follows:

For vear ended a.ch 31, 2024
D€caease
in basis points

Effect protit

(Amount in lltR)
+50 250,351

-50 (260,351)

For year ended Match 31, 2023

in basis points

Effect on protil

(Amount in IltR)
+50 3rAO2

-50 (3r,402)

Foreion currencv risk
Foreign currency risk is th€ risk that the tair value or future cash flows of an €xposure will fluctuate becaus€ of changes

in fo;tgn exchange rat€s, The Company s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchanqe rates relat€s primarily to

theCompany'soperathgactivities(wheorevenueorexpenseisdenominatedinaforelgncurency)Theimpactof
Foreign currency sensltivity is not expected to be materlal

(2) crcdit rlsk

credit risk is the risk that counterparty $,ill not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,

teading to a financlat toss. The company is exposed to credit rlsk from lts operating activities (pnmarily kade

receiv;bles) and from its financing activities, including deposiG with banks and other financial assets

T.ade r.ceivables and Other Financial Assets at amonis€d cost
An impairment anatysis is peformed at each r€porting date on an indrvrdual basis for major clients. The maximum

expos;re to credir risk at the reporting date ts the carrying value of each class of financla assets disclosed in Note 7

The Comoanv does not hold collateral as security

The Comoany evatuat€s the concentration of ask with respect to trade receivables as low, as its custome.s are located

in severaljurisdictions and industrles and operate in largelv indep€ndent markets

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credrt risk from batances with banks dnd linancial instltutions i5 managed by the Companv's treasury department In

accordance with the compdnys policy, Investments of surplus funds are made as per guide|nes and within limits

recuirement, The guidelines are s€t to mrnimize the concen
counterparty's potential fai!ure to rrake payments

(3) Liquldity risk
The Comoanv monitors its risk ol a shortage of funds using a llqoidity mechanism

The table beiow summar zes the maturitv profrle of the Companv s financral llabilities
as on l'larch 31, 2024
Particulars
Borowinqs (refer not€ 13)
Trade and other payables (refer note 14)
other financial liabilitles (refer note 15)

as on l.larch 31' 2023

Borrowinos (refer note 13)
Trade and other payables (rerer note 14)
other financial liabilitres (rerer note 15)

For mitigatrng the liqurdrty risk, rerer note no 38

with in 1 Year ilore than I vear
65,653,848

2,869,444

With in I Year l.lore than t Year

2A,98r,769
16,939,480

52,122,349
18,081,268

24,723,463

Total
55,563,848
28,947,769
19,808,924

total
24.723,463
52,722,3A9

9ry-iio



Mosalc Media Ventures P.ivat€ Llmlted
Notes to financlal statamcnts tor the year Gnd€d l.larch 31, 2024

Note 36: standards issucd but not Yet ctfattiv€
t{inistry of Corporate Aflatrs ("MCA') notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There ls no such noiificatlon whlch would have

been appllcable from April l, 2024.

Note 37 : StatutorY Information :
(i) No proceeding has b€€n Inrtiated or pendtng agarnst the company for holding any benaml proPerty trnder the B€naml Transactions (Prohlbition) Act,

1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

0i) The Company has not been declared as wllflrl delaulter bv any bank or flnanclal lnstitution or other lende'

(iii) The company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under sectlon 2z|8 of the compani€s Act, 2013 or section 560 of

ComDanles Act, 1956

(rv) There are no transac$on which has been surrendered or disclosed as incom€ during the Year In the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act'

r961.
(v) There are no charges o. satlsfaction yet to be reglstered wlth Roc beyond the statutory perlod

(iv) Th€re are no funds whtch have been advanced or loaned or inv€sted (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

iunos) Uy tne Company to or in any other persons or entities. hcluding foreign entities Clntermediaries'), with the unde6tanding, whether recorded in

writing or otherwlse, that the Intermediary shall:

a) direc y or indtrec y tend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever ("L,ltima!e Beneficiaries") by oron behalfofthe

b) provlde any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the L,liimate Benenciari€s

(vii) Th€re are no funds whtch have been recetved by th€ Company from any persons or entitles, including foreign entitles ("Funding Parties"), wlth th€

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwis€, that the Company shalli

a) direcuy or indirecdy, tend or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any mann€r whdtsoever ("Ultimate B€neficlartes") bY or on behalfof the

b) , securrtv o. the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

ii per rhe provtsions of the Core Investment Companies (ReseNe Bank) Dare.tions, 2015) does not have more than one clc (whlch

ls gistered with RBI as not being Systemically Impo(ant clc )

Not€ incurred tosses In the cur the net worth of the Company is eroded as at l'1arch_31, 2024 Further, the

Comp exceeo currenr assets as 2024. The Company has obtained a letter of support from the Holding Companv In

oraer its fund requirements, to the obligations and oPeratlonal requirements'

Further, the company belleves that obligations falllng due beyond one year from the r€porthg dat€ can also be met from varlous internal and external

sources. In the ordinary course of buslness.

During the current year, th€ company has received financial asslstance from its Holdinq company in the form of long t€rm loan There are no exiernal

oorroitngs oue to bants / financiat institu ons as at March 31 2024, In vlew of th€ above, the use of golng conc€rn assumptlon has been considered

approprlai€ in preparation of these flnancial statements.



Itlosalc l{edia ventures Prlvate Limltcd
Notes to flnanclal statements for the vear end.d ltlarch 31, 2024

Not€ 39 : Ratlos
Harch 31, 2024 [arch 31,2023 Reason tor varlance

tlainly on account of Increase in current ass€ts by 97o
and Decrease In cur.ent liabllities by 5old in the current

.,..,I":i-_* -199"d tlth€ pr€vious ye,ar.

Mainly on account of Increase in debt service bt 720q0

aod decrease in negatlve EBIT by 51% in the current
year as compared to the previous year

Mainly on account of decrease in loss after tax by 357o

and increase in negative average shareholde. s equlty
by 580/0 in the current year as compared to the pr€vious

Ratios

t7i6Current ratlo (in times)

(Cuftent assets / Current liabtlities)
Debt-€auity ratlo (ln tlm$)
(Total Debv fotal Equtty)

As per our report ol even date

For B S R & Co. lLP (10124aW/W-100022)
Chdrtered Accouniants

t4embership No 098113

Date:04.05.2024

I*

054 0.46

fotal Debt = Debt Eompflses ofcurrent borrowings
(including cuffent maturities ot long term
botowings), non-cu.rent borrowings ancl interest
accfued on boffowings.
Total Equity = Shareholders' Equity

Debt scrvice coveraoe ratlo (in tim6)
(EEr i.e. EBITDA - Depreciatlon and amottization
e\pense)/ (Debl service i.e. Debt pavable within

,one yeaf + Interest on debt)
Return on Equity Ratlo (r%)

(loss after ta4Ave.aqe shareholcht s Equtty)

lnventorv turnover ratio (tlmes)
(cost ot goods solcl /average Inventory)
COGS = Cost of malenals consumed + Changes in
inventoies ol frnished goods, work-in-progress and

Trade.ecelvablas turnover ratlo (in times)
(Revenue from operations /average trade

Trade oavabl€s turnover ratio (ln tilnes)
{Oaher Expenses* / Average Tra& payabtes)
* Excluding a owances for bad and doubtful
rcceivables, impairment and loss on sale of
Property, Plant & Equiqment

Net caoital turnoyer ratio (ln tim€sl
(Operating Revenue from opetations/ Working
capital)

Net Profit ratio (9/o)

(loss after tax./ fotal Incomel
Return On CaDital EmDloYed ( )
(Earnings Befo.e Interest and rax / capitdl

Return on Investnent (r%)
(Income on Fixed Deposits / Average balance o{

-46 730/o

-80 65

I1,2.124/0

556651 uiinrv on aii6unt ii rncreasi in aue.age raae
receivables by l3qo and revenue increased by 3270 in

the current year as compared to the pr€vious year

-16.360/0

-62.56va

6 550k

-32,69%

-101.630/o

_500/o

-380/o

Mainly on account of increase in operating revenue oy
320lo and decrease in negative working capital by 200,6

in the current year as compared to the previous y€ar.

lvlainly on account ol de€rease In loss after tax bv 350/0

and increase in total income by 3O7o in the current vear
as compared to the previous year ,..
Marnly on account of decrease in neqatlve EBIT bv 51%

and decrease in negati!€ capital employed by 220lo in

the cur.ent year as compared to the previous year

0 35%

Date: O4.O5.2024

r77\o/o l4ainly on account of decrease in incom€ from frxed

deposits by 99Vo and decrease in average investmenls
by looo/o in the current year as compared to the
previous year.
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